
8-22-2025 Clarifying Questions Response 

GWV Rural Telehealth Program Design Consulting RFP 
 
 

Timeline 
1.​ The RFP indicates that “there may be 3-5 distinct health systems requiring 

assistance.” The RFP also states that the “planning process is expected to take 
~4-5 months.” Can GWV clarify whether they anticipate the planning process to 
take 4-5 months for each individual system? 

2.​ Will all projects begin concurrently, or are they expected to be staggered over 
time?  
 

The planning process for all distinct systems would need to be completed by February 
2026.   Projects are expected to be completed within the same timeframe.  
 

3.​ Does GWV expect the selected consultant to perform the project work remotely, 
onsite, or with a hybrid approach? 

 
Consultants may present a model that would be most effective. Given the budget GWV 
does anticipate most work to be remote. 
 
 

4.​ Who will be the GWV project sponsor? 
Annie Stroud, Broadband Program Director is the main point of contact at GWV.  
 

 

Needs assessment and stakeholder outreach 
5.​ Can the client clarify whether the needs assessment is expected to include 

original primary data collection (e.g., surveys, interviews) or if it should rely solely 
on secondary data sources?  

6.​ Does the client expect the consulting team to organize and facilitate stakeholder 
convenings (e.g., roundtables, workshops), or simply conduct interviews and key 
informant meetings? 

7.​ Are there specific priority stakeholder groups the client wants engaged (e.g., state 
health departments, regional hospital networks, broadband providers), or is this 
left to the Offeror’s discretion?  

 
The scope of the needs assessment may vary based on the data and relationships that 
the system(s) already has collected and/or has access to.  Consultants are expected to 



provide a recommended course of action that could include limited stakeholder 
involvement if time/budget allows.   Given the time constraints, GWV assumes that any 
primary data collection would likely be limited to targeted interview and/or data 
collection methods. 
 

Deliverables 
8.​ For the Implementation Roadmap, does the client expect a high-level strategic 

plan only, or a detailed technical rollout plan with budgets, vendor 
recommendations, and training materials?  

 
The goal is to provide a technical roadmap for health systems to use in securing funding 
for their telehealth connectivity projects.  This could include defining needed equipment, 
staffing needs, outreach strategies, and budgets to use in future funding opportunities. 
 

9.​ For the Monitoring & Evaluation (M&E) framework, does the client expect us to also 
provide baseline data collection at project start, or simply a framework and KPIs 
for the client to implement? 

 
For the budget and scale of the project, this will likely be limited to the framework/KPIs for 
them to implement. 
 
Budget and costs 
 

10.​ Can the client confirm whether each project must be proposed separately in 
distinct proposals, or can one submission cover multiple projects with modular 
budget options?  

 
GWV is requesting a single project proposal.   If consultants wish to show savings based 
on more than one project, the evaluation team will consider it as well. 
 
 

11.​ The RFP caps each project at $30,000. Are travel costs allowable within this ceiling, 
and if so, are there restrictions on per diem or travel categories?  

12.​ For indirect costs, if applying the 10% de minimis rate, should it be applied across 
the entire project budget or only to modified total direct costs (MTDC)?  

13.​ Is there a preference for a time-and-materials breakdown (e.g., labor categories, 
hourly rates) within the Firm Fixed Price budget narrative, or is a summary cost 
table sufficient?  

 



Preference is for a not to exceed price along with time and materials breakdown.  The 
evaluation team is evaluating the overall total cost, approach and proposed 
deliverables. Internal consultant budget categories are at the discretion of the 
consultants.  
 

Project selection 
 

14.​ The RFP indicates 3–5 projects of up to $30,000 each. Will these projects be 
competitively awarded to different vendors, or is it possible for a single vendor to 
be awarded all projects if capacity is demonstrated?  

15.​ Will proposals be evaluated per project or holistically across all submissions by a 
vendor?  

It is possible for the same vendor to be awarded all projects if capacity is demonstrated. 
Proposals are evaluated based on a per-project.  The total quantity of projects has yet to 
be determined. 
 

16.​ Beyond the listed evaluation criteria, are there additional priority factors (e.g., 
local presence) that evaluators will weigh more heavily?  

 
No, evaluation criteria are listed in the RFP. 
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